
 
For further information please contact: 

Democratic Services, Civic Offices, Fareham, PO16 7AZ 
Tel: 01329 236100 

democraticservices@fareham.gov.uk  
 

 
 

FAREHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL / HAMPSHIRE 
COUNTY COUNCIL 

 
 

 

AGENDA  
FAREHAM MUSEUM JOINT MANAGEMENT 

COMMITTEE 
 

 

PLEASE NOTE THAT THE MEETING WILL BE HELD AT THE CIVIC 
OFFICES AND NOT AT WESTBURY MANOR MUSEUM, FAREHAM 

 
 
 
Date: Monday, 31 October 2016 
  
Time: 9.30 am 
  
Venue: Vannes Room - Civic Offices 

 
Members: Councillor Miss S M Bell, Fareham Borough Council (Chairman) 

 
 Councillor P Latham, Hampshire County Council (Vice-Chairman) 

 
 Councillors C Matthews, Hampshire County Council 

Mrs K Mandry, Fareham Borough Council 

 
Other Representatives Mrs A Baxandall, Friends of Fareham Museum 

Mrs B Clapperton, Friends of Fareham Museum 
 

mailto:democraticservices@fareham.gov.uk


 
 

 

1. Apologies for Absence  

2. Minutes (Pages 3 - 6) 

 To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Joint Management 
Committee held on 22 July 2016. 
 

3. Westbury Manor Re-Modelling - Presentation  

 To receive a presentation from the Leisure and Community Manager, updating 
members on the Westbury Manor Re-Modelling. 
 

4. Westbury Manor Museum JMC Curators Report (Pages 7 - 14) 

 A report on activities at or relating to Westbury manor Museum, covering the period 
July – September 2016. 
 

5. Westbury Museum Finance & Revenue  Budget Report 2016/17 (Pages 15 - 18) 

 An update on the Museum budget for 2016/17. 
 

6. Date of Next Meeting  

 To agree a date for the next meeting of the Fareham Museum joint Management 
Committee.  
 

P GRIMWOOD 
Chief Executive Officer 
Civic Offices 
Civic Way 
Fareham 
PO16 7AZ 
www.fareham.gov.uk  
21 October 2016 

http://www.fareham.gov.uk/


  

 

FAREHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL / HAMPSHIRE 
COUNTY COUNCIL 

 
 
 

Minutes of the 
Fareham Museum Joint Management 

Committee 
 

(to be confirmed at the next meeting) 

 

Minutes of a meeting held on Friday, 22 July 2016  
in the Westbury Manor Museum - Westbury Manor 

 
 

PRESENT:  

Councillor                 Miss S Bell (Chairman) 

  
 

Councillors: C Matthews (Hampshire County Council) and Mrs K Mandry 
 

Other 
Representatives 

Mrs Anne Baxandall (Friends of Fareham Museum) 

 
 

1. CONFIRMATION OF CHAIRMAN AND VICE-CHAIRMAN  
 
The Joint Committee was invited to confirm appointments of the Chairman and 
Vice-Chairman for the municipal year 2016/17. 
 
Councillor Miss S Bell was nominated as Chairman by Councillor Mrs K Mandry 
and seconded by Councillor C Matthews. 
 
Councillor P Latham was nominated by Councillor Miss S Bell and seconded as 
Vice Chairman.  
 
RESOLVED that the Committee appointed Councillor Miss S Bell as Chairman and 
Councillor P Latham as Vice-Chairman for 2016/17. 
 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor P Latham and Mrs B 
Clapperton. 
 
 



Fareham Museum Joint 
Management Committee 

- 2 - 22 July 2016 

 

 

3. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Joint Management Committee 
held on 01 February 2016 be confirmed and signed as a correct record. 
 

4. WESTBURY MANOR RE-MODELLING - PRESENTATION  
 
The Joint Committee received a presentation from the Leisure & Community 
Manager on the proposed re-modelling of Westbury Manor. 
 
Copies of the initial plans were tabled by the Leisure and Community Manager so 
that discussions around the proposed changes for the internal and external space 
could be illustrated.  It was stressed that these plans were produced in the early 
stages of the planned re-modelling and are currently being updated to incorporate 
feedback and comments received as part of the consultation process.  Revised 
plans will be provided at the next meeting.  
 
The key points raised in the discussion of the plans were: 
 

 The ground floor will be re-modelled at both the front and the back of the 
museum to provide increased floor space for the café whilst allowing 
continued use of the community resource room.  

 

 The railings will be removed from the front of the building to make the 
museum more accessible to the public.  Tables and chairs will be provided to 
make use of the space.  

 

 The upstairs space will use objects and digital information to “Tell the Story 
of Fareham” through temporary and permanent exhibitions. Office and rest 
room space will also be provided along with provision for space to be rented 
out to local artists.  
 

Work is currently being undertaken by Hampshire County Council Architects to 
finalise a design that will protect the Grade II listing building status.  It is planned 
that the museum will close in January for remodelling (subject to planning 
permission being approved). The refurbishment is expected to take around four 
months to complete with the re-opening of the museum estimated to be in May 
2017.  
 
Mrs Baxandall asked that the committee note the strongly held views of the Friends 
of Fareham Museum that provision must be made within the building for the curator 
of the museum to have office space so that confidential matters can be dealt with.  
Councillor Miss Bell confirmed that she has raised the views of the Friends of 
Fareham Museum with Members of the Fareham Borough Council Executive 
Committee and the revised plans should accommodate this. 
 
Councillor Miss Bell informed the Committee that the Hampshire County Council 
Architects have been asked to ensure that the revised plans also make provision to 
recognise the very generous bequest that the Museum received from the estate of 
the late Miss Winifred Nellie Cocks as the bequest is making a significant 
contribution to the remodelling of the museum.  
 



Fareham Museum Joint 
Management Committee 

- 3 - 22 July 2016 

 

 

The Leisure and Community Manager was thanked for her update to the proposed 
re-modelling and timescales. 
 

5. FINANCIAL REPORT AND REVENUE BUDGET REPORT 2016/17  
 
 
The Curator of the Museum presented a report on the Museum’s budget for 
2016/17.  The report asks the Committee to note the content of the update, 
approve the 2016/17 budget and respond to a letter from BDO LLP advertising 
financial review services.  The following points were highlighted by the Curator: 
 

 Salary costs are slightly lower than forecast due to the cross over period 
between curators when there was a short time when there was no curator in 
post.  
 

 Venue Management costs are lower than expected due to work being done 
by Hampshire County Council as part of the re-modelling project. 

 

 Income figures have improved for May and June due to seasonal increases 
in visitor numbers. Income was £1,647 for May and £1,500 for June.  

 

 As a Charitable Trust, there is no longer a requirement for the Museum’s 
accounts to be audited.  A letter received from BDO LLP offering a Limited 
Assurance Review for the year ending 31 March 2016 and 31 March 2017 
requires the committee consideration. 

 
It was RESOLVED that the committee:- 
 

a) notes the 2016/17 budget update; 
b) does not wish to take up the offer of financial review services from BDO LLP; 

and 
c) approves the 2016/17 budget 

 
6. WESTBURY MANOR MUSEUM JMC CURATOR'S REPORT  

 
The Joint Committee received a report by Cerian Trevan, who is the curator for the 
museum, on activities at or relating to Westbury Manor Museum covering the 
period February 2016 to May 2016. It was noted that the report was prepared by 
the interim curator prior to Ms Trevan’s appointment in mid-June.  
 
The Curator was thanked for presenting the report.  
 

7. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 
It was noted that the next meeting needs to take place in September so that the 
Committee can consider and discuss the revised plans on the re-modelling of the 
museum. 
 
RESOLVED that the Committee Officer will liaise with Members and agree a 
suitable date in due course.  
 

(The meeting started at 2.30 am 
and ended at 3.05 pm). 





 
 

  
  

Committee: WESTBURY MANOR MUSEUM, FAREHAM 
JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

Date of Meeting: 31 OCTOBER 2016 

Title of Report: CURATOR’S REPORT 

Author: CERIAN TREVAN 

  
Purpose: 
  
 
  

 
1 Providing a Welcoming and Well Maintained Museum 
 

1.1 Museum Service Delivery 
 

Over the last months of peak season the team’s focus has been on service delivery Front 
of House, putting into practice skills developed in their Principles of Customer Service 
training in May. The VSA’s have worked closely with the volunteers to continue to improve 
the welcome to the museum visitors received and have focused particularly on orientating 
the visitor on arrival and promoting the option of donating.  
 
During the summer holidays we have run a number of offers in both the café and shop 
aimed at families and children, for example a kid’s summer holiday drink and cookie deal 
and a Lego sale. In addition we have had a number of popular family events at the 
museum during July and Aug, in particular our Fun Day Fridays which attracted high 
numbers of participants. These sessions were supported by our ever enthusiastic 
volunteers who helped the various people who led these sessions to deliver a wide range 
of exciting craft activities.  
 
There has been a review and refresh of the shop stock with new lines being brought in 
which are proving popular with visitors. This will continue in Sept with a range of baking 
goods aimed at the creative baker inspired by the start of Bake Off and a new jewellery 
range featuring beautiful pressed flowers.  
 
The Tearoom continues to bring visitors in to Westbury Manor; many of which are repeat 
visitors. Our ‘Cake of the Week’, a luxury treat which includes a donation to HCT, has 
proved a naughty temptation many can’t resist and has sold very well. To sit alongside our 
hot drinks offer we have refreshed the cold drinks with a range from Fentimans.  

 
 
1.2 Visitor Figures 
 

Year April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Totals 

 
2009 – 
2010  

3118 2138 2615 3065 3781 2206 3514 2496 1808 1762 2367 3347 32,217 

 
2010 – 
2011 

3367 2687 2696 2935 3333 2124 2471 2530 1563 1870 1799 1872 29,247 

 
2011 – 
2012 

2605 1971 1797 2175 2266 1648 1950 1951 1813 1870 1799 1872 23,717 

Report on activities at or relating to Westbury Manor Museum 
Covering period July – Sept 2016 



 
 

 
2012 – 
2013 

1816 449 1852 4992 2449 1414 2416 1566 1070 1300 2046 1555 22,925 

 
2013 – 
2014 

4463 3235 2281 1545 1823 1472 2600 1569 1547 1463 2775 1743 26,516 

2014 – 
2015  

1904 1391 1105 1554 2605 1588 1757 1342 1270 1183 1710 1312 18,721 

2015-
2016 

1161 1157 1254 1784 1708 1076 1398 2265 1152 974 1268 1110 16307 

2016-
2017 

1190 996 1401 1393 1763         

 
Total visitor figures for the 3 months are slightly down on the same three months from the 
previous year. This is due to lower than expected visitor numbers in July as both June and 
August figures are above the equivalent months from last year. Visitor numbers were lower 
than budget for both June and July but have beaten budget in August. The issue with anti-
social behaviour seen in May continued into June and probably impacted numbers, but 
support from local Police has improved this and the garden is no longer such a regular 
gathering place, although the benches at the front of the museum do still attract groups. 
Poor weather at the start of July also affected numbers as these picked up as the weather 
improved later in the month. August’s figures were helped by 4 very successful Fun Day 
Friday events and two popular Summer Shorts exhibitions. 
 

2 Hosting Special Temporary Exhibitions and Related Events 
        
 
2.1 Royal Blood - Big Theme 2016 14 Mar – 18 Jul 

 
Part of the Hampshire Cultural Trust’s Big Theme 2016 on Royal Blood, ‘Heads and Tails’ 

focussed on the past 2000 years of English Royalty through objects and interactives with a 

special Royal Blood horrible history trail for families. This exhibition proved popular with 

our visitors, particularly those with children who enjoyed the associated activities.  

2.2 Summer Shorts Exhibitions – 5 local exhibitors 22 Jul – 25 Oct 

The Summer Shorts exhibition programme started with a preview evening on the 21st July 

attended by the exhibitors and their friends, volunteers and Friends of the Museum. The 

Solent Embroiders Guild were the first exhibitors with their theme of ‘Stitching the Solent 

Shore from Sea to Sky’. This exhibition was very well received by visitors with some 

staying over an hour to enjoy the exhibition and DVD displays fully. The greetings cards 

associated with this exhibition also sold very well in the shop. 

 



 
 

 

Figure 1: Embroidered seahorse 

The second exhibition was by the Solent Art Society and was timed to coincide with 

Hampshire Open Studios exhibition. A wonderful range of works by local artists was put on 

display and prompted lots of comments in the visitor’s book.  

Cathy Lawrence will be in the gallery most of Sept and will be working and demonstrating 

daily in the exhibition space which will be a great opportunity to talk to the artist and watch 

her work. 

                                     

           Figure 2: Painting by Cathy Lawrence                      Figure 3: March hare by Fareham Woodcarvers 

             

We will then have Arran Mac and the Fareham Woodcarvers in late Sept and Oct. 

2.3 All Manor of Arts 22 Jul 

The All Manor of Arts craft activity day was planned to coincide with the opening of the 

Summer Shorts Art exhibitions and themed to tie in with the Pride of Place display cases. 

Children enjoyed a strawberry bunting making craft activity which due to the sunny 

weather took place on the courtyard at the front of the museum. This event was designed 

and led by the Ashcroft Arts Centre and children had the opportunity to take bunting home 

or leave it to be displayed in the museum shop or at the Ashcroft.  

 

 



 
 

2.4 Fun Day Fridays every Fri in Aug 

The ever popular Fun Day Fridays ran again this August with themes linked to our various 

displays and visitor figures show they helped attract people to the museum on those days. 

Numbers of participants ranged from 20 – 44 per session and all sessions were supported 

by our volunteers. The first one had a seaside theme to fit in with our Pride of Place 

display looking at life on the seashore, children were able to make seashell wind chimes, 

seaside snow globes and sea themed cross-stitch (to match the embroidery exhibition). 

We also had a Messy Art day to coincide with the Hampshire Open Art events including 

lots of messy bubble wrap printing and bubble blowing art. The other two sessions were 

delivered by other colleagues in HCT, Christine Taylor, Curator of Natural Sciences, led a 

‘Big Bug’ session where children had an introduction to some of the Big Bugs on display 

and could then make their own insects out of 4 different options. Finally SEARCH 

delivered a strawberry basket making workshop on the Friday before the bank holiday 

weekend.  

2.5 Pride of Place 

The Pride of Place display cases in the resources room have had some interesting and 

very different displays in over the last 3 months. At the beginning of July we had a 

beautiful display of hand-made hats by local milliner Susan Hughes, followed by a fun sea 

shore display created by one of our volunteers Viv Rance looking at what could be found 

down on Fareham seashore. In Sept we are hosting the Age Concern photographic 

display and book tour ‘Getting On’ which features contributions from a number of Fareham 

residents.  

 

 

Figure 4: Seaside display 

2.6 Indian Dance Group – Sangha 

On the 3rd Sept Indian dance group Sangha performed in the gardens, sadly the planned 

dance workshop was rained off, but visitors came into the tearoom to enjoy a hot drink and 

cake instead. This was really popular and promotion on the day attracted a number of 

people who would not otherwise have visited the museum, there were over 50 people in 

the gardens enjoying the colourful performances for an hour.  



 
 

                      

Figure 5 & 6: Sangha Indian dance group performing in the garden 

Caring for Collections, Promoting Access, and Providing Specialist Knowledge and 

Advice 

 
3.1 Caring for collections  
 
Current policy is for any objects not on display to be stored at Chilcomb House or, if they 
are on long-term loan, to be returned to their owners. This way we can ensure that the 
objects are kept in the best condition possible within our resources. Following on from the 
audit of both the collections on display and those held behind-the-scenes conducted by the 
Collections Manager during the last quarter plans have been put in place to review the 
collections currently stored at Westbury ahead of the refurbishment project.  
 
The aim is to list and photograph all the items in store that have been deposited at the 
museum to enable the relevant Curator to be able to assess what the most appropriate 
location for each object is e.g. display, storage etc. A number of volunteers have offered to 
be involved with this already and the Collections Manager will provide full training and 
support for them throughout the project. Dates for an introductory session are being 
arranged now to enable this project to start as soon as possible.  
 
The conservation staff continued to monitor the environment at Westbury Manor to make 
sure it remains stable enough for the great diversity of objects on display. The regular 6 
monthly visit to download the temperature and humidity readings took place in early Sept.  
 
 
3.2 Promoting access to collections 
 
 
In preparation for the ‘Big Bugs’ Fun Day Friday event at the museum, Christine Taylor, 
Curator of Natural Sciences prepared for display a number of bugs from the biology 
collections, these mostly consisted of foreign insects from a variety of locations around the 
world and included Elephant beetles, Goliath beetles and Atlas beetles. The children were 
able to learn about these bugs and then had the option of 4 large insects to make. This 
event was really well attend (44 participants) and a number of visitors chose to make all 4 
bugs. 
 



 
 

 
Figure 7: Beetles prepared for Fun Day Friday 

 
The Hampshire’s Hidden Treasures case was changed over in September, replacing the 
Iron Age tankard for minerals that can be found in the shopping trolley. ‘Did you know that 
the weekly shopping trolley contains naturally occurring minerals which are used in a 
variety of ways? Examples include: Muscovite, which is used in cosmetics to give a 
sparkly effect when applied to the skin and limestone which when ground up is used in 
toothpaste to remove plaque. 
 
 
3.3 Providing specialist knowledge and advice 

        
Our collections staff contributed to the development of outline proposals for the permanent 
exhibitions at Westbury Manor Museum. Ideas were discussed for ways in which they 
could be refurbished to tell its story in a modern, accessible, fun, and family-friendly way. 
Over the last two months several of the project team have been at the museum speaking 
to visitors and other key local stakeholders to gain their views on the proposals for the new 
galleries to support the HLF bid. To complement this the VSAs and volunteers have been 
carrying out a marketing survey with visitors to add to our visitor profile data. 
 
 
Better Life Chances 
 

4.1  Formal Education Provision 
 

July through to September marks a quiet period at Westbury Manor Museum due to the 
schools breaking up for the summer holidays. However the Better Life Chances team will 
be linked into the development of the new museum with schools in mind and hope to 
contribute to the HLF funding bid which HCT is developing. 

 
 

4.2 Community Engagement and Learning 
 
Poetry Project in and around Fareham for People with Dementia and their Carers 
 
Healthwatch Hampshire is supporting the Better Life Chances team to help improve 
wellbeing and gather feedback of mental health users with the use of a Community Cash 
Fund (CCF) of up to £2,500. The feedback collected will be used to influence service 
providers and improve outcomes for local communities, particularly within mental health 
services. The project will focus on people with dementia and their carers, holding a series 
of sessions in Fareham care homes and day settings led by a poet who will use poetry to 
express personal experiences of mental health services. The words and responses will be 



 
 

captured by the artist and brought together into poetry for Healthwatch Hampshire to share 
with service providers.  
 

Activity/Event Target Audience Date 
No. of 

participants 

All Manor of Arts Families 22 Jul 20 

Fun Day Friday - Seaside Families 5 Aug 39 

Fun Day Friday – Messy Art Families 12 Aug 25 

Fun Day Friday – Big Bugs Families 19 Aug 44 

Fun Day Friday – Strawberries Families 26 Aug 20 

Sangha Indian dance group Families 3 Sept 55 

 
 
 
5.  Marketing and Management 
  
Marketing Communication: 
 

Throughout the period we have released the What’s On leaflets featuring Westbury Manor 
Museum This was delivered at the beginning of April and also the later (redesigned) 
edition in August. 12,500 copies were printed and it is circulated via our distributors, 
Brochure Connect, to TICs, libraries, museums, accommodation providers, educational 
establishments, attractions, arts centres, theatres etc. 
 
 
Online marketing: 
 
The e-newsletter Museums Monthly, featuring exhibitions and events from Westbury, has 
been sent to sign ups on a new database. Subscribers now number over 2,500 and we 
featured the Museum May-kers at Westbury in the May edition. 
 
Research: 
 
Postcodes are now routinely collected from visitors at on an ongoing basis. These are 
profiled annually using Mosaic software and provide ongoing information on which groups 
of people are using and not using our services and how individual visitor profiles compare 
to the local area.  This feeds into the service and marketing planning processes.  

Social Media: 

HCT Facebook now has over 2,600 “likes” and twitter nearly 3,800 followers. Events at 
Westbury are promoted on both social media sites on an ongoing basis. We have 
promoted Fun Day Fridays and the Summer Shorts exhibitions on Social Media (Facebook 
and Twitter) and the website. This is not an exhaustive list and doesn’t include generic 
HCT or over-arching theme supported posts, posts added which weren’t on the plan, re-



 
 

Tweets or Tags and Shares. We have Tweeted and created a Facebook post for every 
event listed above. 

Big Theme: Royal Blood 2016  

The Royal Blood website including sign up area and What’s Ons for all upcoming events 
has been live throughout the big theme. (Westbury was featured when it had the Heads 
and Tales exhibition.) However, Royal Blood Facebook and Twitter accounts are posting 
and tweeting  interesting facts in addition to promoting each individual event at each venue 
and we ensured that Heads and Tales was promoted both as a series of exhibitions and 
also the Westbury exhibition itself.  
 
75,000 DL RB leaflets have been produced promoting all key exhibitions. 48,000 of these 
are being professionally distributed by Brochure Connect across Hampshire and the 
bordering counties (Berkshire, West Sussex, East Dorset, Wiltshire and Surrey) including 
date specific “blitzing” in key areas prior to regional events (including in the Fareham area 
for Heads and Tales during the May - July.) Westbury Manor received a pack of collateral 
before launch, including leaflets and posters. We then did a second run of 12,000 “family 
leaflets” which also incorporated Heads and Tales at Westbury. 
 
A PR campaign was also embarked upon with our agency Carswell Gould to encompass 
all the Royal Blood/Heads and Tales events. This includes Releases at the launch of major 
exhibitions (and also a co-ordinated Press event alongside our partners Winchester 
Cathedral and The Great Hall.) 
 
We took out Press adverts in the Basingstoke Gazette, including a feature wrap and strip, 
(we received some editorial support alongside this paid advertising space) in Schools Out 
(May half term), Primary Times (back page summer half term), Defence of the Realm 
magazine and The View. These all featured Heads and Tales at Westbury Manor. 
 
For the first time this year our big theme has a media partnership with Wave FM. This 
includes On Air mentions of our events during round ups of what’s on locally (at least 3 
mentions per week for each of our 4 featured events), 2 features in e-shots to their 
customer database, a webpage on wave105.com (over 330,000 visitors per week), and 
specific targeted messaging via their Social Media channels throughout the partnership. 
We ensured that Westbury was mentioned on air during the period that Head and Tales 
was open. 
 
Finally, Royal Blood signs have been created for use around several key sites as well as 
pull ups for permanent use in some sites and some for loans/to be moved around to 
different locations necessary.  

 
Cerian Trevan, Sept 2016 

.  
  



WESTBURY MANOR MUSEUM JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE  

31 October 2016 

FINANCIAL REPORT AND REVENUE BUDGET 2016/17 

 

Introduction 

In accordance with the agreement between Hampshire County Council and Fareham 

Borough Council, the net cost of running Westbury Manor Museum is shared between the 

partner authorities.  Hampshire Cultural Trust runs Westbury Manor Museum on behalf of 

the partners.  This report provides an update on the budget for 2016/17 (Appendix 1) and 

asks the committee to note the contents of the update. 

Description of  2016/17 Budget 

The 2016/17 budget for Westbury Manor Museum provided in Appendix 1 reflects proposed 

partner contributions as follows:  

1. Venue Management - salaries 
Includes venue management and curator salaries and on costs. 

2. Venue Management - costs 
This includes expenditure on rates, supplies and services and an estimated utilities and 

maintenance cost based on the average costs during 11/12, 12/13 and 13/14.  Due to 

annual fluctuations in property and maintenance costs, some years the actual cost of 

maintenance will be higher as works need to be carried out and in other years the 

burden will be lighter.  Hampshire County Council will continue to pick up any such 

overspend in years where more work needs to be done. 

3. Public Programmes (exhibitions) 
This charge contributes towards the cost of the Exhibitions team and includes display 

development, transport, setting up and taking down, cases for local exhibitions, 

insurance, marketing and research relating to new exhibitions. 

4. Collections  
This charge contributes to the care, curatorship and management of all collections 

relating to Westbury Manor Museum, organised within the disciplines of Archaeology, 

The Arts, Natural Sciences and Social & Industrial History. The Service will continue to 

store, manage and provide public access to these important collections and make them 

available to the local community in support of exhibitions, displays and activities. 

5. Better Life Chances 
The Better Life Chances team is responsible for the design, creation, marketing and 

delivery of participatory learning sessions for young people in school and family groups, 

as well as other collections learning activity in both informal and formal settings, both 

within the museum and beyond in to the community.  The team will place greater 

emphasis on work with hard to reach people in the specialism of Older People, Young 

People, Schools and Community. 



6. Business Development 
Business development and marketing functions form the bulk of this cost. Marketing 

functions include visitor research, targeted marketing campaigns, museum and What’s 

On leaflets, posters, website development, email marketing, advertising and media 

relations leading to free editorial and promotions. Business development provides 

strategic guidance and direction, monitors performance, levers funding from external 

sources including Renaissance and Arts Council, and liaises closely with senior 

councillors and officers where appropriate. 

 
These budget headings reflect the headings in the draft Venue Plans, making it easier to 
understand where money is being spent and how Westbury Manor Museum directly benefits. 
The budget has been modelled to include staff increments and a 1% pay award. They also 
include financial activity within the trading arm and projected income from gift aid (where 
applicable).  
 
Figures shown for 2016/17 are for the period Apr-July. 
 
 
Recommendations 

  It is recommended that the committee 

1) notes the 2016/17 budget update. 



Appendix 1 

 

 

Westbury Manor Museum Joint Management Committee Budget 2016/17 

 

Expenditure Actuals 
2014/15 

Budget 
2015/16 

Actuals 31 
Mar 2016 

Budget 
2016/17 

Actuals 
25 Aug 
2016/17 

Venue Management – Salaries 47,040 47,430 46,544 47,904    9,169      

Venue Management – costs* 27,183 18,474 12,420 27,183 2,792 

Public Programmes 23,504 18,433 23,504 18,433 6,151 

Collections 43,941 45,421 43,941 45,421 15,140 

Better Life Chances 33,214 32,574 33,214 32,574 8,062 

Business Development 16,605 22,577 16,605 22,577 7,450 

Total Expenditure 191,486 184,909 176,228 194,092 48,764 

Income 16,471 17,175 14,575 17,175 7,743 

Net Expenditure 175,016 167,734 161,653 185,607 41,021 

 

Income Actuals 
2014/15 

Budget 
2015/16 

Actuals 31 
Mar 2016 

Budget 
2016/17 

Actuals 
30 April 
2016/17 

Hampshire Cultural Trust/HCC 110,486 103,204 97,123 121,077 0 

Fareham Borough Council 64,530 64,530 64,530 64,530 64,530 

Total Income 175,016 167,734 161,653 185,607 64,530 

 

In addition to the above, it is recognised that Fareham Borough Council makes the following 

additional contributions: 

Expenditure £ 

Employees 6,200 

Premises (maintenance of grounds) 5,000 

Commercial rental value (including Committee Section) 40,000 

Central Costs (including Committee Section) 7,800 

Total 59,000 

 

Excludes all central costs provided within HCT such as Finance, HR, IT, Administration and Legal 

Services which equates to an estimated cost of £36,431. 

*This includes expenditure on rates, supplies and services and an estimated utilities and 

maintenance costs based on the average actual costs during 11/12, 12/13 and 13/14 (due to annual 

fluctuations in property and maintenance costs, some years the actual cost of maintenance will be 

higher as works need to be carried out and in other years the burden will be lighter.  HCT/HCC will 

continue to pick up any overspend in years when the work needs to be done. 




	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	4 Westbury Manor Museum JMC Curators Report
	5 Westbury Museum Finance & Revenue  Budget Report 2016/17

